V. K. SURANA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
V.C.A. COMPLEX, CIVIL LINES, NAGPUR - 440 001
Ph. No.: (0712) 6641111, Fax: (0712) 6641122
e-mailinfo@vksca. com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Ponda Envocare Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ponda Envocare Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profits(including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropniate to provide a basis for our opinion

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matiers stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in eguity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable. and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to doso

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect
a material misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




V. K. SURANA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
V.C.A. COMPLEX, CIVIL LINES, NAGPUR — 440 001
Ph. No.- (0712) 6641111, Fax: (0712) 6641122
e-mail:infoi@vksca com

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our waork; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements :

9 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

{a) We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

{(c) The financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act .

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

{fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such
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controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A wherein we have expressed
unmodified opinion;

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March
2024,

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are matenal either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reascnable and
approprate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
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to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March
2024

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31 March
2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did nol come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
1st April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

(h} Asrequired by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit we report that the Company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions
of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 (‘the Order'), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Acl. we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

For V. K. Surana & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.110634W
R~

CA. Suresh Galani
Fartner

Membership No. 168192
Nagpur, August 16, 2024

uoin: 24168192 BkCZ.Q 283108
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"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor's Report referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date
to the members of PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED on the financial statement for the year
ended 31st

March 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement over financial
reporting of PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reparting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, bath
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company, and (3] provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitian, use. or disposition of the company’s
assetls that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.110634W

CA. Suresh Galani
Partner

Membership No. 168192
Nagpur, August 16, 2024

voin: 241681328BkC7@Q 7.3 108
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“Annexure B" paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of Ponda Envocare
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024:

A statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order 2020 ("the order”), in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

a (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property. plant and equipment and right of use assels

{B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly. reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  The property, plant and equipment and right of use assetls have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by
the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

¢. The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee and buildings created on the lease properties). Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d.  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

= No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Properly Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder

i} (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records
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iit)

i)

v)

wi)

vil)
a)

{b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any
point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms. Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
VI of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. In our apinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 in
respect of investments, as applicable

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further. no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues

referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropnate
authorities on account of any dispute
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viii)

i)

x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, interest free loans amounting
to Rs. 7,335.27 Lakhs are repayable on demand. Further, such loans thereon have not
been demanded for repayment as on date.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e}
and clause 3{ix)(f) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer {including debt instruments), during the year Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xi)

xii}

xiii)

xIV)

®v)

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
axamination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, parially or optionally) converible
debentures during the year Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us. no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the period covered by our audit.

{b) According to the infermation and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

{c) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, there are na whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014  are not applicable to
it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable Further, the details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements. as required under /
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Relaled Party Disclosures specified in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133
of the Act

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to and consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of
section 138 of the Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persans connected with its directors
and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect 1o compliance with
the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.




V. K. SURANA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
V.C A COMPLEX, CIVIL LINES NAGPUR - 440 001
Ph MNo. (0712)6641111, Fax, (0712) 6641122
e-mail info@vksca com

xvii)

xviil)

Xix)

¥X)

The Company is not required 1o be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a).(b) and (¢) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 16.20 lakhs and 23 47 lakhs
respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this |s not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet

the criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, repaorting
under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xxi)  The reporling under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
financial Statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in
respect of said clause under this report

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.110634W
o

?:;\_‘u-}.‘-
CA. Suresh Galani
Partner
Membership No. 168192
Magpur, August 16, 2024

UDIN: 24168192 BKC Z. R Z.3|08




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

Particulars

I} ASBETS
1. Non-Current Assets
{al Property, Plant And Equiprment
(b} Capital Work In Progress
(e] Deferred Tax Assets (Met)
(d} Other Non Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

2. Current Assets
{a} Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
{il Trade Receivable
] Cash And Cash Equivalent
(i} Bank Balarnces other than (ity above
{c} Current Tax Assels (Net)
{d} Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
|} EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(8} Equity Share Capital
{b] Cther Equity
Total Equity
2. Liabilities

2.1 Non-Current Liahilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Bormrowings
{ia) Lease Liabilities
filj Other Fimanoal Linbibities
{b) Provisions
(g} Cther Non-Current Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

2.2 Current Liabilities
{al Financial Liabilities

(il Borrowings
ta) Leases Lighibties
(o) Trade Payables

tal Dues of Micro and Small enterpiises
ib) Dues of creditors other than Micro and Small

ENTErpPrises
(iit) Ciher Financial Liabilines
(b} Other Currsnt Liabilities
{c] Provisions
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity And Liabilities

Sygnificant Accounting Policies

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm RHegistration Mo, : 1 10634W
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12
13

14
15
16
17
18

19
20
2]

22

24

As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
T in Locs P in Lacs

10,545.89 1,126.67
283 K7 0,339, 02
2,634.05 31.15
7.92 315.21
1347173 10, 802.06

17.43 <
108.77 3103
0.37 193,17
30277 28450
16.58 4.98
1,206.92 1.216.81
1,652.84 1, 750.50
15,124 .57 12,552.55
1,000, 010 100000
2,002, 84 - 10272
3,002.84 BOT.28
3.440.23 3.,879.54

20,04 .
3.34 G619
72.36 2.92
72.11 82.50
3.686.099 397116
7.833.R9 T,305.00

1.41 )
2.4 LA 1]
10045 Q.83
399.05 1.01
18.50 153,44
7801 13.04
8.434.74 768412
12,121.73 11,655.27
15,124.57 12,552.55

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
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Director
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Director
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PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars No 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
’ ¥ in Lacs # in Lacs
I. Revenue From Operations 25 62775 -
II. Other Income 260 25.94 0.06
MI. Total Income (I+II) f53.19 0.06
EXPENSES :
Direct Expenes 27 245,28 012
Emplovee benelit expenses 28 12.08 -
Finance Cost 29 3B2.55 5.94
Depreciation And Amortization Expense a0 480.24 33.55
Other Expenses ai 30.46 17.47
IV. Total Expense 1,150.60 59.08
V. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (III-IV) (497.42) {59.02
VI. Tax Expenses
Current Tax B .
Deferred Tax (2,602.92} {12.08]
Total Tax Expenses (2,602.92) (12.08)
VII. Profit/|Loss) For The Year [V-VI) 2,105.50 {45.04]
VII. Other Comprehensive Income
1. Items That Will Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss
Net Gainf(loss) on Remeasurement defined Benefit Plan 0.08
Income Tax relating to item that will not be reclassified w
Profit or Loss (0.02) -
II. Items That Will Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss
Income Tax relatung to item that will be
reclassified to Profit or Loss
Total Comprehensive Income 0.06 -
IX. Total Comprehensive Income For The Year [VI+VIII} 2,105.56 (46.94)
X. Earning Per Equity Share Of Rs. 10/- Each
Basic 21.05 2.32)
Diluted 21.05 (3.3
Sipnificant Accounting Policies 1
The gecompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report on even date
FOR V. K. SURANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Chartered Accountants PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Firm Registration No. {1 10634W CIN : USOO01IMH2013PLC24668T
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PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Statement Of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

A. Equity Share Capital Note No. ¥inLacs
12
As at 1st April, 2023 L,.000,00
Changes in Equity Share Capital :
As at 31st March, 2024 1,000,00
As at 1st April, 2022 5.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital 955.00
As at 31st March, 2023 1,000.00
B. Other Equity
tai Other
Particulars o 5 ol Comprehensive Total
Earnings
Income
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 (102.72) - (102.72)
Profit/{loss) for the vear 2.105.50 2,105.50

Other Comprehensive Income For the vear 0.06 (.06

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,105.50 0.06 2,105.56
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 2,002.78 0.06 2,002.54
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 [55.78) - [55.78)
Profit/{loss) for the vear [4£.94) - 146.94)
Other Comprehensive Income For the vear -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year [46.94) - (46.94)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 (102.72) - (102.72)

Significant Accounting Policies [
The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our repart of even date

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartersd Accountants
Firm Registration No. :110634W
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PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 3 1st March, 2024

Year ended Year ended
31-Mur-24 31-Mar-23
n . P inLacs ¥ in Lacs
Profit Before Tax [497.432) {59.02)
Interest Income 220,31
Finance Cost A82.55
Subsidy Amortised during the year -5.12 .
Depreciation & Amorltisation 480,24 35,55
Acrount Write off 068 2
Lease Paymont -7.04
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 0.08 -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Ch 333.95 {23.47)
Adjustments For Working Capital Changes -
{Decrease)/ Increase in Non-Current Provisions 69.44 1.66
{Decrease)/ Increase in Current Provisions 65.27 2.19
{Decrease| /Increase in Inveniories [17.43) 0,00
{Decrease)/ Increase in Trade Receivables |58.72] (44.05)
{Decrease)/ Increase in Trade Payables 92.46 (7.05)
{Decrease]/increase i Other Current Finanoial Lishilities J98.03 {246.50)
[Decrease]/ [ncrease in Other Current Liabilities (E=0.11) 131.63
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Non Current Assels 307,29 {307.73|
{Deerease] /Increase in Other Non Current Liabilities 0.00 82.50
[Decrease]/ [nerease in Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities {2.85) 6.19
Decrease/ (Increase| in Other Current Assels 9.a0 {T44.85]
Cash Generated From Operations : 1037.24 {1.149.53)
Direct Tax Paid/ Adjusted -11.Ad .
ot Flow From/({Used rating Activities 1,045.64 {1,149.53]
I1) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, CWIP and capital
advances [T55.91) {3.934.56)
Investment in Fixed deposit (18.27) -285
Interest Recemved 20.31 -
Met Cash flow from/{nsed in] Investment Activity (753.87) |6,219.06)
111} Cesh Flow From Finsncing Activities ;
Increase/ (Decrease] In Non Current Borrowing -430.31 1,812.32
Increase/ (Decrease] i Current Borrowing 328,29 223191
Proceeds from lsuue of Equity share Capital - 995.00
Finance Cost -342.55 .
Net Cash from d in -484.57 7,049.23
Net Inereass as h Eguivalent +B+0 (192.80) [319,36]
Cash & Cash Equivalent At The Beginmi “AT 193.17 512.53
0.37 193.17

Cash & Cash Eguivalent At The End Of Year

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Anancial statements

As per aur report of even date

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
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PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS AS AT 31st MARCH 2024

I) Corporate information
PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED is a closelv held Company domiciled in India and Incorporated on 05th August 2013,
The Company hes proposed to set up integrated waste management plant in the state of Goa, It s 8 wholly owned
subsidiary Company of SMS Envocare Limited.

1) Basis of preparation

i)

i)

mj

Compliance with IND AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Compsanies
Act, 2013 ‘Aot read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standerds) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in Financial Statements except where &
newly issued accounting stantdard is initiallly adopted or revision to an existing accouting standard requires a
change in the accounting poelicy hitherto inuse

Historical Cost
The Financial Statements have been prepaered on histoncal cost basis

Current Versus Non Current Classification
All assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current &s per the Company’s normal sperating
cyvele (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule [1 1o the Act.

Rounding off of Amounts
All ameunts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest lokhs as per the
requirement of Schedule [, unless othermse stated,

o tes and J H

The preparation of financial statements w conformity with Ind AS requires the management o make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asscts and liabilives and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. The estimates and judgements used in the
preparation of financial statements are continucusly evaluated by the Company and are based on histonical
experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events| that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances, Differences between dctual results and estimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known /materialised. The said estimates are based on the facts and
events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about
conditions existing as at the reporting date

The areas involving estimation of uncertainty and judgement at the date of the financial statements, which may cause
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year given below

a)
bj
¢}
di
e}

0

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Current Tax Pavable

Valuation of deferred tax assels

Fair value measurement of financal instruments

Defined Benefit Obligation

Probable outcome of matters included under Contingent Liabilities

Dietailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of caloulation for each affected line item affected in finacial Statements

111 Material Acco Polie
u) Property Plant and Equipment

Recognition & Measurement .
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any, Historical
cost inciudes expenditure that is directly atributable (o the acguisition of the items,




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

i)

Advances paid towards acquisition of property plant & equipement outstsndmg at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non current assets and the cost of asset not put to use before such
date are disclosed under " Capital work in progress”. Subsequent costs afe included fn the asset's carmyng
EMOUnt or recognused as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated wath the item waill flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carmying
amount of any component accotnted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenence are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss dunng the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Non-monetary grant has been recognised at a nominal amount as per Companies ([ndian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Bules, 2018 (the ‘Rules) on 20 September 2018

D clatio thod and residual =
Depreciation 15 calculated on a strajght hoe basis over the estmated useful bfe of the assets as per provided
Part C of schedule 11 of the company act 2013 or remaining life of the project which ever is less,

For Depreication of Landfill Asset, the Company evaluates the cost of construction of Landfill and also the
capacity of landfill in Metric Ton (MT). Based on this the company evaluates Per MT Rate of depreciation to be
charge on landfill. Every vear the company evaluetes the gquantity of waste disposed off in landfill and charge
depreciation on landfll by multiplyving the Per MT depreciaton rate with the quamitity of waste disposed during
the year.

The company, hased on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain 1tems of building, plant and equipment over esumated useful lves which are same as the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives

are realistic and reflect fair approxmation of the penod over which the assers are likely to be used.

Useful life considered for caloulation of depreciation for vanous assets class are as follows-

Assot Class Usefual Life
Huildings 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Lab Equipments 15 vears
Computers & Printers 3 vears
Vehicles 8 vears
Flant & Equipmesit 15 vears

An item of property, plant and eguipment and any significant part initafly recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Anv gain or loss arising on
derecogrution of the asset (calculated as the difference berween the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) 15 included in the income statement when the asset s derecognized.
As per condition for award of project the majonty of assets are required to be handed over to ¢concessionor in as i
ig condition. Hence residual value of the asset is considerad at 5% of gross block of nssat.

b} Investment Property

Property that is held for long-term tental vields or for capital appreciabon or bath, and that is not eccupied by the
Company, is classified 85 investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less deprecintion and impairment if any.

c|

o Ha

Intangible assets are stated at cost less acenmulated amaortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of a non
monetary assst acquired in exchange of another non-monetary asset is measured at fair value. Intangible assets are
amartised over their respective individual estimated useful life on written down value basis from the date that they
are available for use.




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

dj

e

Bl

h)

Inventories :-

[nventones are valued at the cost or net realisable value whichever 15 lower . Cost comprise of all the cost of purclhass
and other costs incurred in bringing the ioventories to present locatdon and condition.

Cost formulae used 18 weighted average cost, therefore due allowance is estimated and made or defective and obsolete
items wherever necessary,

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash squivalent in the balance sheet comprse cash at banks and on hand end fixed deposits with origional

maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Borrowing costs directly amtributable to the acquisition, constructon or production of an asset that necessarily takes
& substantal penod of tme 16 get ready for its mtended Use as part of the cost of asser, All other borrowing costs are
pxpensed in the period in which they incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Transaction cost in case of long term borrowings are amortised over
the respective loans usmg effective mierest method. Barrowang cost also includes exchange difference to the extend
as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Leases :-
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the prospective approach. The application of Ind AS 116 has not
resulied into recogmtion of Right-al-Use’ asset with a corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet,

The Company, as a lessse, Tecognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control the use of
an ideatified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset and has nght to direct the use of the identfied asset, The cost of the night-of-use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease lability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or hefore the commencement dste plus any inital direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets s subsequently
measured ar cost less any accumulared depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for Bny
remeasurement of the fease lability. The nght-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or Useful life of right-of-lise asset.

The Company measures the lease bability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid et the
commencement date of the lease: The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the case, il
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cennot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payvments a5 an aperating
expense an & straight-line basis over the lease term.

ent Re 1=
The Board of Directors of the Company constitute the Chief Operating Decision Makers ("CODM”) which allocate
resources to and assess the performance of the segments of the Company.

Finaneial i-

(i} Filnancial Assets

1) Classification
The company classifies i ets in the mao nt egories:
a) Those measured at amortised cost

bi Those to be measured subsequently ot fair value (either through other comprehensive or through statemnent of
profit and Loss), and

The classification depénds on the Company’s business model for managing the fnancial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

2} Initlal Recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, wansaction costs of financial assets carried at fair valde
through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss,




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

3)

4

S)

it}

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) Financilal assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are subsequently mensured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective o hold these assets in order to callect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solély payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these fGnancial assets is
included in finance meome using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) methad. Impairment gains or losses arising
on these assets are recogniscd in the Statement of Profic and Loss

b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financisl assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective 15 achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selbing
financial assets and the contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Gows tha
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCL except for the recogrnition of impairment gains or losses, mterest revenuoe and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respeet of
equity investments {other than for investment in subsidiaries and associates) which are not held for trading,
the Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes tn the fair value of such
instruments in OCL Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument bass at the
time of transttion for existing equity instruments; inthal recognition for new squity iInstruments

<} nci a value thro fi oss
Financial assets are measured at far value through profit or loss unless it s measured at amortzed cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on imital recognitoen. The ransacton costs directly
attnbutable to the acquisibon of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Impalrment of Financlal Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECLY) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credic risk exposures. The Compeany follows ‘sunplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowsnce on trade receivables, Simplified approach does not reguire
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance hased on hifetime
ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and nsk exposure, the Company determines that whether there hos been a significant increase in the
credit risk since mitial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL 15 used to provide
for impairment loss However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
penod, credit quality of the instrument mmproves such that there is oo longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverls o recognismg impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assst to
unather entity, If the Company neither transfers nor refains substantally oll the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the fingncial asset and also
recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds teceived.

en Finanecial Liabilities
Financial labilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified sccording to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered inta and the definitions of & financial lability and an equity instrument.




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

A

a)

b)

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument s any contract thar evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its labilives, Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at
fair value of the squity instrument.

Financial Liabilities

1) Initial recognition and Measurement
Financial abilities are recognized initally at fair value and in case of borrowing and payables, net of direcily
attnbutahle cost,

2)

Financial Babilities are subsequently carmied at amornzed cost wsing the effective nterest method, except for
contingent consideration recagnized in 4 business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or less: For trade and other payvables maturing within one yvear from the balance sheet date, the
cArrying amounts approximare fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

3] De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the ohligaton specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired, When an existing financial liability 2 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substandally modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as de-recognition of the original hability and recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carmving amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4) Offsetting Financial Lisbilities
Financial assets and financial iabibties are offset and the net amount 14 reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is 8 currently enforceable Ipgal rdeht to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net hasis to realise the assets and settle the habilities simultanecousky.

Impalrment of Non-Financial Assets ;-

The Company assesges at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset, including intangible
asset, may be impaired. If any such mdication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable emount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount. the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impatrment loss and is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account

Recoverable amount is determined:

« In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets’ fair volue less cost W sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (A group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
hugher of cash generating umit's fur value less cost to sell and value In use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ol money and risk specified to the asset
In determining fair vahie less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into sccount. If no such
trangaction can be identified, an appropriate valuaton model is used

Impaitment losses of continuing operatons, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taleen to OCL For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OC] up to the amount of any previous revaluaton. When the
Company cansiders that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written
off. Il the amount of imparment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 1o an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed

k| Borrowings :-
Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction eosts incurred and measured at amortsed cost. Any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs] and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Lass over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

nj

o}

FTOVISIONS G Tl ab IS rent
A provision is recognized when the company has the present obligation (legal and constritctive] as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that sn cutflow of resources embodyving economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a relighle estimate can be made.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed where there is possible sutcomes from past obligation or present obligation that
may probahly not require an outflow of resources When there 15 possihle or 8 present obiligation where there 15
likelihood of sutflow of resouwrce is remote.

Contingent Assets are not recognised and disclosed seperately in the Gnanciil statements.

Provisions, Contingent Asset & Contngent Liabilities are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary 1o
reflect the current best estimate of the obligarion.

Provision for Landfill cover charges
The techntcsl team team works out the likely total cost that will be required to cap the landfill and the likey quantity

af waste in Metric Ton [(MT) to be disposed off in Landfll and derives the per MT cost of cover charges. Hased on this,
the provision is being done every year for the quantity of waste disposed.
The actual cost of capping incurred during the vear is adjusted against this proviston.

Provis i ] es (Post monito [ &5

Against the required post monitoring activity, the technical team evaluates the likely cost required for mamtenance of
each landfill. Based on this, per metnc ton {MT) post monitoring cost is worked out and provided for in the books
against the acrual quantity disposed during the year

Revenue Recognition:-

The company earns revenue primarily from waste disposal services and allied activities including transportation and
laboratory testing of waste

The Company recagnizes revenue in aceordance Ind AS 115 " Revenue From Contracts with Customers" which
establishes a comprehensive ramework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is 1o be recognised.
Revenue i3 measured based on the transscton prnee, which is the consmderation, adjusted for volume discount,
service level credits, performance bonuses, price coneessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with
the customer, Revenue also éxcludes taxes collected from customers.

Fevenue has been recognised on accrsal basis ar the tme of receipt of washe

The company disaggregates revende from contracts with eustomers on the basis of nature of waste disposal services
provided that is direct landfill, landfll after treatment and ineineration,

Government Grants :-
Grants from the government are recogoised at their fair value where there 1§ reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all antached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in capital reserve as
deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on a Written Down Value basis over the reamaning period of the
project and presented within other income.

Fore & Tu
(1} Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee [INR), which is Company's functional and presentation
CUTTENCY.

{fi}) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised af the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates
Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign cutrency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Monetary foreign currency sssets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchan g

Pl Taxes on Income:

Income Tax compnses of current and deferred tax and is recognised in statement of P&L except to the extent that
i relates to an item recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
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i} Current Tax:-
The income tax éxpenss or credit. if there is any for the periodis the tax payvable on the curment period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income (8x rate as per [neome tax Act 1961, Current Ineome tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the umount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

il) Deferred Tax:-

Deferred income tax is provided i full, using the Balance sheet approach method on temporary differences
arsing between the tax bases of assets and liabilites and their carrying amount in the financial statement, if
there iz any. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantally enacted by the end of the reportng period and are excepred to apply when the related defferred
income tax assets is realised or the deferred mcome tax linbility is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deduetible temparary diferences and unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that funire taxable smounts will
be available to utilise those temporary dilferences and losses.

q) Employee Benefits :-
i} Short-term obligations :-
Linbilities for wages and salaties including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employvees render the related service are recognised in respect
of emplayees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected 10 be paid
when the labilites are seitled.

Leave Encashment

The leave obligattions cover the Company's halmlity for sick, casual and earned leave, The Liabilities for sick and
carual Leave are treated as current labilities since there is no poliey for the payment of these liabilities and nght
to avail these leave expires within 12 Months. The liabilities for earned leave are classified as non-current,
however no discounring 15 done for these as company expects the discounting rate and salary increase rate to be
similar i,e 6%,

ii] Post-empl efit o ations :-
The Co ny o tes the followin t employme
a8} Defined benefit plan such as gratuity; and
k) Defined conrribution plan such as provident fund

Gratuity obligations
The liatality or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of

the defined benefit obhligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefir
obligation is calculated annually by actuanes usang the projected uni eredit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obhigaton is determined by discounting the estimated futire cash outflows
by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on government bongds that have terms approximanng
to the terms of the related obligation

The net mterest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost i3 included in employes benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

Remeasurement gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanial sssumpbons are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income, They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
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Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 15 a8 defined conmbution scheme. The company has no
obligation, ather than the contnbution payahle to the provident fund. Contributions are made o provident fund
in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic plus DA as per regulations. The contributions are made to
registered provident fund administered by the government. The company recognizes contributon payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an emplovee renders the related service. If the contmbution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the defcit
payable to the scheme is recoghized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the conmbunon due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recogrnized as an assel

r) Earnings Per Share:
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the company by
the weighted average nomber of Equity shares outstanding dunng the year,
Diluted EFS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to aquity holders of the company by the
weiphted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
sharcs that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares inte Equity shares.
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2] Property, Plant and Equipment

Right to Use tin L
Plant and Furnlture and T
Asscts - 1d B ce
Particulars 1,:::“M nildings Equipment Feitiiian Vehicles Bt Computers Lab Equipments Total
A. Gross Carrying Value
As at 1st April 2023 - > 1,135.61 1.00 20.72 4.71
Additions 98,39 4,071,59 5,702.38 . 27 08 1.33 38.59 1L,491.70
Dispasals : : _ & - 9,895.45
Inter-head Adjustment - : 38.33 - X 3833 -
As at 31st March 2024 98.39 4,071.59 6,876.31 1.00 47.81 4.71 1.33 I-i:l II;JJ 11,101.1%
i 101,
As at lst April 2022 - = 1,103.42 1.00 15.53 4.71 0.37
T Additions - : 33.19 . 5.21 - oo S e
Disposals = - 3 = - : 30.48
| Inter-head Adjustment - : . = - - 2
As at 31st March 2023 - - 1,135.61 1.00 20,72 271 133 38.33 I zul_?u
B, Accumulated Depreciation
As at_1st April 2023 = - 58.08 1.00 1130 4.29 0.35
Charge for the yeur 3.78 128 53 34335 3481 .06 031 7502
Lnsposals - - - . S : § 4902 |
Inter-head Adjustment - - z 3 - - 2
|_ As at 3lst March 2024 3.78 128.93 401.43 1.040 15.11 4.35 0.66 = BEE 25
i As mt 1st A-pl‘ﬂ 2022 - = 20.98 1.00 5.19 3.19 0.12 = 10.48
Charge for the year ;> + 28 11 0,00 6.1 110 023 3
et e - _ : 35 55
Inter-head Adjustment J > = - " - = —
As at 31st March 2023 e - 58,08 1.00 11.30 429 0.35 - 503
C. Net Carrying value
As ut 31st March 2024 94.61 3,942.66 6,474.88 0.00 32.70 0.37 o
As at 31st March 2023 . - 1,077.52 0.00 .42 S as n::: ;::gl _ u:,i.;::::
Note : -

The company has received conaent to operate for incinerator on Yth June 2023, pecordingly ol the capitil expense has been capitalized in the month of June 2023, 1 roial
. . e 2¥23 The vom COMILLE T i
operation in the manth of June 2023 Furthermore the company (Ells under the cotefory of speoified business ss per the provigon of scotion 3540 of Inoome Tax Act 1961, Accurdi.lf;;]:hr l.'UlJT::.ITII I.':u fdl’“m"-' i
capital expenditure wp to 9t June 2023 u/s 3SAD of Income Tax At 1961 durey FY 2023-99 amounting to Re. 9,800 45 Loy, TR
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As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
P inLacs P in Lacs
3} Capital work in Progress :
Vehicle LN .
Building 50 22 3,019.51
Plant & Machinery 163.43 5,723.26
Furmiture & Fixture 6493
CHfice Equipments 1.62 A
Pre-operative Expenises® 465.51
Capital Inventary F 126074
Total : 283.87 9,329.02
CWIP Ageing Schedule as on 31st March 2024 ;
Less than 1 1-2 yaars 2-3 yeurs More than 3 Total
year years
Project in Progress 283.87 - - 283 BT
Total 283.87 - 283.B7
3lst
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Paxticulasy year YOS
Project in Progress 9329 032 - - 9.329.02
Total 9.329.02 - 9,329.02
4y Deferred Taxes: T inlLacs
Recognlsed In
As at lst Recognised in As at 31st
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) : Statement of 024
April, 2023 Profit & Loss oCl March, 2
Deferred Tax Assets @
On account of Depreciation Difference 4887 +8.87
n account of Unbsorbed Losass BO.02 2,552.35 2,632.37
Expenses L pa
Provigion for Gratuity 0.87 -0,02 BS
Provision for Bonus . 0.14 014
Provison for Lease Encashment - 0.69 - 0.69
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 31.15 2,602.92 -0.02 2,634.05
As at 1st !t.'b-m-ul-::: Recognised in As at 31st
eferred Tax Assets|[Liabilities] : March, 2023
Pe April, 2022 [ SO P ocl
Deferred Tax Assets : -
On account of Depreciation Difference -3T.5T -11:30 4887
O account of Unbsorbed Losses 503,64 23.38 - 8002
- .15
Net Deferred Tax Asset/[Llability) 19.07 12.08 31.1
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As at As at
31-Munr-24 31-Mar-23
¥ inLacg ¥ in Lacs
5) Other Non Current Assets:
Security Depontt to Vendor & Uslities Ta2 792
Capital Advances a07.29
Total : 7.92 315.21
6] laventories
|As takeen, valued & certified by the Management ot lower of Cost (oo Weighted Average Basis
or Net Realiasable Value)
Consumable, Stores and Spares 17.43
Total ; 17.43 -
T e ivable :
Considered good - Unsecured,
Related Party - _
Others 112.81 51.03
Leas ! Provision for Doubtful debts .04 z
Total : 108.77 51.03
& Reo L Schedule : -
Less than & |6 Months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
As at 31st March 2024 Montha 1 year years
Undisputed Trade
1) [receivables - considered 107.07 .86 (.84 2.15 1.89 112.81
good -Unsacured
Total 107.07 0.86 0.84 2.15 1.89 112.81
Less than 6 |6 Months to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
As at 31st Mareh 2023 Months 1 year years
Undisputed Trade
1} [recemvables - constdered 4807 .12 (.56 189 51.03
good -Unsecured
Total 48.07 0.12 0.986 189 51.03
B) Cash and ents :
Balances with Banlks
In Current Account (.37 193:17
Total : 0.37 193.17
5) Other Bank Balances :
Fixed Depoait with Banks 302.77 284,50
{Onginal Maturity of mere than 3 Months but Remaining matarity of less than 12 months and
kept as margin money or Secunty or other commitments)
Total ¢ 302.77 284.50
10) Current Tax Assets (Net] :
TCH Receivable .53 3-22
: 16. ;
TDS Receivahle
Total : 16.58 4,98
11) Other Current Assets | —
Goods and Service Tax Receivable e L IEZ ?! 1..121-'1 .:1
Prepaid Expenses ’K 17.92 |
Fr 1.29 .80
Adwancs to Creditors [ =t s
i ! ite | ’
Balance with Revenue Authorities ., w— T T316.81
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As at An at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
T in Laga ¥ in Lacs
12) Equity Share Capital ;
Authorised Shares Capital:
1,00,00,000 (10003000, equity shares of par value of 1,000 00 1,000.00
Rs. 10/- epach
1,000.00 1,000,080
[zssued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up share capital :
100,060,000 |1,00,00,000) equity shares of par value of 1.000.00 L.000.00
Rs. 10/-each
Tatal : 1,004, 00 1,000, 00
Notes :
a) Terms/rghts attached to eguity shares |

The company has only ane class of equity shares having par value of Bs. 10 per share. Each holder of Eguity shares is
entitled te one vote per share, The eompany declares and pays divided in Indian Rupees. The dividend propased by Directors
is subject oo the approval of sharchalders in the ensuing Annual General Meecting

In the event of hquidation of the company, after distrfbution of preferential amount the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company in proportion to the no, of equity shares held by the sharebolder

b} Reconciliation of the number of shares and the amount cutstanding at the beginning and at the énd of the year :

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
No.of Sharea P in Lacs No.of Shares FinLacs
At the beginning of the vear 1,00,00,004 1,000 00 30,000 = 0}
Add : Issued during the year - = 99,350,030 G55 )
Outstanding &t the end of the year 1,1¥0,00,000 100000 1,00,00,000 1, 00004

¢} The details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in the company are :

31-Mar-24 31-Muar-23
% holding in % holding in
No.of Shures the o3 No.of Shares the claxs
{ii SMS Envocare Lid 1, 00,00, 000 100.00% 1,00,00,000 100.00%
d} Disclosure of shares held by holding company :
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
% holding in No.of Shares % holding in
No.of Shares prigt B o
iy 3MS3 Envocare Lid 1,00,00,000 100.00% 1.00,00,000 100.00%:
¢} Details of Shareholding of Promoters in the company as under:
Eé-ﬂl.r-ﬂli 3;&23
Promoter Name Noiof 8 % of Total »L ml No.of St % of Total % Change
a8 Shares 3"-'-“. o Shares During the year
545 Envocare Limited 1,00, 00,000 100 0.00% 1, 00,00, 000 100 100, 00%

13} Other Equity :
a) Retained Earning :

Balarice 08 ot Baginning of Reporting Period 102,72 -55.78
Add : Profit [or the yvear 2.105.50 46594
Total : [a) 2,002.78 -102.72

b} Other Comprehensive Income :
Balance as af Beginning of Reporting Period g *

Add [tems will nat be reclassified to prafit or loss in subsequent periods [Net of taxes] 0.06
Add Items will be reclassified to profitor loss in subsegquent pencds (Net-of Taxes)
Total : [b) 0,06

Total : (a+h) 2,002.84 -102.72
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As mt Aas at
31-Mar-24 31-Muar-23
¥ in Lecs ¥ in Lacs
14} Non-Current Borrowings :
Secured Loan
Axis Bank Term Loan 171500 1.526.00
IC1C] Bank {Term Loan| 1,708.70 1891540
1CICT Bank (Vehicle Loan) 9.56 35 14
Bank of Baroda (Vehicle Loan) 1597 -
Taotal @ 3,449.23 3,879.54

Additional [nformation to Nop Current Borrowings :
1) Secured:
(=) 1 E

Secured by hypothecation of specific vehicles as specified in the schedule annexed 1o the agreement, vide sanction letter on
vanous dates. The details of indvidual loans are as under. All Loans are having fixed Interest Rate

Outstanding
Effective Amount of | gjance as on
ar Maturity period Date of Bate of Total No. of No of instalment 31.03.2024
Ko. w.r.t. Balance Sheet | Agresment/ taberest i 1 tn instalments including
date Sanction i, due Interest
7 inLacs ¥ in Lacs
ICICI Bank Ltd
1|l Years 1 Months 20-05-2021 T.75% &7 13 1. 16 1423
2|1 Years 11 Months 29-03-3022 7.35% 7 23 0.72 15:33
3)1 Years 4 Months J1-08-2021 8.05% &7 16 0.22 3.28
4|1 Years | Months 20-056-2021 7. 75% a7 13 .43 2.30
Bank of Baroda
I.[.'i Years | Months 29-04-2023 B 05" &H 37 0.72 22.47

(b Term Loars from Banks ;
Secured by hypothecation of entire fixed & Current assets of the eqrire company both present and future as dpecified mn the
schedule annexed to the agreement, vide sanction letter on various dates. Collateral secured for equitable mortgage on lease
hold land 5 & 5A, Pissurlen 1DC, Pissurlem Sattari North Goa, on parl passu basis and personal guarantee of Mr Paramvesr
Sancher & Mr. Nibhay Sanchetl The details of individual foans and interest rate are as under,

Outstanding
Amount of
Effective Balance as on
instalmen
g | Metuiiny pesiag Bateof | oeteof | Total No.of Wo:of pathmest | 31.0a.2024
No.| ™t Halance Sheet | Agresment i I lneuts instalments uding
d date Banction a% due Interest
¥ inLacs T in Lacs
ICICI Bank Ltd
1|5 Years 10 Months | 21-03-2023] 9500 | 72 | 70 | NA® | 191540
AXIS Bank Ltd
1]5 Years © Months . | 24-11-2022] 9.40% | 7 | 69 | HA* | 192600

*The instaliment of Axs Bank and ICIC] Term loan is not fixed, it is ballooning in nature depending on repayment schedule
as givern by the bank (rom time to time

As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
T in Lacs ¥ inlLacs
15) Non-Current Lease Linbilies :-
Lease Liabilities as per IND-AS 116 B9 94 -
Total : #9.94 =
16) Other Non Current Financial Liabhilities :
Memberakip Deposit 3,34 619

Total : 3.34 5,19
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As at As at
31-Mur-24 31-Muar-23
¥ in Lacs ¥ inLacs

17) Non Current Provisions :
Provision for Gratuity 2.79
Frovision for Leave Encashment 2.55 -
Provigion for Poat Monitoring Expenses 3247 0.46
Provialon Tor Landfill Cover Charges 3455 0.80
Pravision for Incinemation Expense 1.66
Total ¢ T2.36 2.92
18] Other Non Current Lisbilitles :
Deferred Income - Government Grant 72.11 B2.50
Total : T2.11 82.50
19) Current Borrowings :
fif a) Secured loan from Banks :
Loans sepayable on Demand ;
Axis Bank Over Drafr Limit 433
[CIC] Bank Ower Draft Limir 41.51

Additional Information to loans repayable on demand
1 Ower draft limst is granted for a year to be repewed at the end of 12 month penod
2 Axis Bank Over Draft Limit : -
Ower draft is gecursd by way of fived deposit of s 15.00 Lakhs, Interest Rate is 9 4% pa

3 ICIC] Bank Over Draft Limit : -

Promary secunty by way of hypothecation of entre cuitent assets and Axed sssets of the computy both present manid
future and Collateral secured for equeable mortgage on lease hold land 5 & 5A, Plasurlem [DC, Pissurlem Sateari Morth
Goa, on parl passy basis and personal guarantes Mr. Paramveer Sancheti & Mr. Nibhay Sancheti, Interest Rale is

9.65% pa
b} Current Maturities of Term Borrowi
Axis Bank Term Loan 211,00 2400
ICIC] Bank [Term Loan| 206.70 34 60
1CECT Bank (Vehicle Loanj 28.58 2648
Bank of Barsda (Vehicle Loan) f.50 -
[} Unsocured Loan

From Related Parties
Loan Repavable on Demand

Maharashira Envire Power Lid 5,044.47 4,246 85
SM3 Envocare Limited 2,190.80 3, 14368
Total : 7.833.89 7,505.60

Mote ; Loan from SMS Envocare Lrd and Maharashira Enviro Power Ltd does not have specific repayment term and non
interest bearing

20) Current Lease Liabilics :-
Lease Liabilibes as per IND-AS 116 1.41

Total : 1.41 -

21) Trade Payables :
Micro and Small Enterprises 2 44 0.60
Dues to other than Micro And Small Enterposes
Related Parties
Others

44,14 4
56,31 9.83
Total | 102.89 10.43
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Trade Pa le t=

As at 31st March 2024 } 1.2 years 2-3 years n 3 Tatal

1] |Outstanding dues 1o MSME 244 2.44
2] |Others 02.67 T.78 . 100.45
Total 95.10 T.T8 - - 102.89
As at 31st March 2023 seastan 1l % yess 2-3 years Wose thia 3 Total

yoRe FEurs

11 |Qutstanding dues to MSME 017 043 - D.60
2 |Others 878 1,05 . z 9.83
Total 2.05 1.48 = - 10.43

TOTAL OUTSTANDING DUES OF MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Company has eertain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Meadium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

1

("MSMED Act), The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows.

the principal amount remaining unpadid to dny supplier at the #nd of sach accounting
year;

2} the interest due an the principal amount remaining unpaid any suppler at the end of
each accounting vear

3 Poncpal amounts paid to supplbers registered under the MBMED Act, beyvond the
appainted

4|  Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, bevotd the apponited diy during the vear

3 Interest due and payabie for the penoed delay i making payment beyvend the appointed
day during the year, other than those specifed under MSMED Act

6] the amoun! of nferest accrued and remuning uapaid at the end of each accounting vear,

7]  the amount of farther interest remmning due -and payable even i the succeeding years,

22| Other Current Financial Liahilities :

Creditors for Captial Goods
Other Dues to Emplovesa
Salary Pavable

Bonus Payable

Expense Payable

23] Other Current Lisbilities :

Deferred Income - Qovernment Grang
For Statutory Dues

Revernue received in advance
Refundahle to customer

24) Provisions :
Provision for Emmployes Benefit
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashmernt

Provision for Incineration Expense
Expenaes Payvable

Total §

244 060
As ax As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
¥ in Lacs FinlLacs
36936 -
.40 1.01
4,23
.54 -
14.52 *
399.05 1.01
5.27
13.31 -
- 15344
0.01 -
18,50 153.44
0.39
0,12 %
0.51 -
T6.87 E
1.53 13.64
TB.91 13.64
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As at As mt
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Fin Lacs ¥ in Lacs
25) Revenue from Operations :
Sale of Bervices
Waate Disposal Service 404 40
Logistic Revenue 120.84
Laboratory Income 12 50 -
Total @ G527.7T8 -
Disaggregate revenus information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,2024 by
Mature. The Company believe that this disaggregation best depict the nature, amount, tmung and uncertainty of revenues
and cashilows which are allected by industry markst and other economic factors,

Reveniie t waste Services based on Nature of Services
Landfill after Treatment 110.01
Direct Landfill 220.11
Incineration 164.28
Total Rs, 494,40 =
Detall of top 5 Customer in term of revenue
Malco Energy Lumited 192 29
Nestle Indin Limited 115.02
Berger Backer Coating Pravate Lamut T2:30
Commscope India Private Limited 30,11
Ceccan Fine Chemicals ([) Pvr Lid 3474
Total Rs. A64. F6 -
26) Other Income :
Apportionsd [ncome from Government Grant * 5.12 3
Lnterest income on
Fixed Deposit Receipts 20.30 -
Income tax relund oot 0,06
Tatal : 25.44 0.06

* Note: During the FY 2022-23 the company has receivesd subaidy /Grant from Government Amounung 1o Bs. 82.50 lakhs. Same
has been apportioned on propartionate basis and shown under the bead of other tncome,

27) Direct Expenes ;
A] Waste Disposal Expenses :
Incineération Expenses 75.21
Landfill Cover Charges 3375
Electricity Chargea 28.52
Labour Charges 16,19
Paat Monitoring Expenses 32.01
Repairs & Maintenanioe - P& M .89

(B} Logistic Expenses |

Transportation Charges .00

Repairs & Maintenance - Vehicles 'R 326

Labour Charges 7.56 -
R.T.0. Chearges 031 b.o2
Cithier Logiatic Experiges 0.08 0.1
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As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mas-23
¥ inLacs ¥ in Lacs
€] Other Expenses :
Oiher Operating Expenses 1.81
(D] Consumption:
Chemicals, Stores and Spares 3770 <
Total : {a+b+e+d] 245.28 45,016.12
28) Employee benefit expenses :
I Weges
Saleiries and Wages 4.75
Bonus .54 -
Girntulty expenses™ 326 -
Leave Encashment 2.66 -
Contribution to provident and other funds n.o3 .
Workmen and Stall Wellare Expenses 0.83 .
Total : 12.08 -

** Note:- Since the Gramty s unfunded the same s clubbed under head Salanes & Wages as per the guidance note on
Dhvision-1T INDAS of Schedule IT1 to the Companies Act, 20113

29) Finance Cost ;

Interest an Term Loan 31630 -

Corporate Guarantee 58.60 -

Interest on Yehicle Loan .35 5.9

Interest an Owver Draft 1.30 -

Interest/ Penalty on GST £.00 -
Total : J82.55 5.94

30) tion and Amortisation 8!
Depreciabon = 480,24 A5.55
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

As at As at
J1-Mar-24 J1-Mar-23
¥ in Lacs T in Lacs
31) Other Expenses

Connultancy Charges T.22 085
Bad Debts 404

Corparate Social Responsibility 263
Travelling & Conveyance 251 4.55
Vehicle Hire Charge 2.28 0,23
Insurance Experse 213 118
Office & Mise Expenses 1.46 .15
Canteen And Fooding Expense 131 0.53
Account write off 0.98 .
Internet Expenses 0.93 (2,39
Renit 0.79 1.80
Lodging & Boarding Charges o.72 1T
Bank Commission & Charges 0.7 .22
Payment To Statitory Auditor 0.65 0.6a
Tel=phone And Mobile Expensss 0.39 0.36
Koo Charges 0.37 01l
Professional Fees 0.33 010
Business Promotion Expenses 0.31 .54
Dioriatiogn .24 20
Legal Expenses 0.18 127
Postapge And Courier Q.11 -
Printing & Stationery .09 .24
Repairs & Maintenance

Lomputer 003 -

-Plant And Machinery . 0.57
“Yehicle B .32
-Cither .04 0.07
Electricity Charges - 0.20
Plant Safety Expenses - 0,06
Medical Expenses - 0.12
Remstraton And Licensimg Expense 5 020
st Expense : 0.58

Tatal : 30.46 17.36




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

32) Contingent Liahilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

A] Contingent Liahality
Claims against Company not acknowledge as Debt
B} Guarantees *
G} Commitments
a. Capital Commilments
b. Revenue Comumitments
0} Contingent assets

33) Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fees

As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
¥ in Lacs ¥ in Lacs
Q.95 d.262.02
A7.33 665.06
47.28 3.263.02
(_6E {6k
0.66 (.66

*  The holding company "SMS Envocare Lid" has issued bank guarantee for Perfformance secunty to the authorities

on behall of our company to the tune of Rs.765.00 Lacs

34| Related Party Disclosures As Required In Term Of IND-AS 34 Are Given Below :

1. Relationships

(a) Holding Company
5MS Envocare Limited

[b) Key Management Personal

1. Asif Hussain- Director 2. la Tiwan - [nrector 3. Avinash Bawane- Director
fe) Others
Subsidiary of Holding Co. Joint Ventures of Ultimate Holding Co,

Bunbori CETP Pvt Ltd

3MS Water Grace Enviroprotect Pvt Ltd
5MS Waluj CETP Pvt Lid

Envotech Waste Management Lid
Envoroprotect Waste Management. Lid
5ME Greentech Pet Lidd

SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Mgt Pyt Lid
Maharashtra Enviro Power Lumdted

Western Integrated Waste Management Facility Pyt Lid
SMS Envoclean Pyt Lid.
5MS Water Grace BMW Py, Ltd

Ultimate Holding Co.
SMS Led.

Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Co.

SMS Mine Developers Pvt. Lid.

Spark Mall nd Parking Pyt Ltd

3MSE Taxi Cabs Pyt Ltd.

SMS Infolinle Pvt. Lid.

SMS Tolls And Developers Ltd.

SMS Vidvur Pyt Lid.

SMS-AABS India Tollways Private Limited

PT. SMS Minerals Intermational

SMS Mining Limited

Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Pyt, Lud.

SMSL Ketki MD{) Project Limired

SMS Waste Management Pet. Ltd.

FT. 3MS Mines Indonesia

SMS Hazardous Waste Management Pyt Lid
iate te H Ca.

RCCL Infrastrnicture Lid.
SMS AAMW Tollways Pyt Lid

5MS Infrastructure Litd, & 0. Thakkar Construction Pvt,
Led. JV

Shalctilevmar M. Sancheo Led, & S N Thakkar
Construction Pvt, Ld. JV

Sanbro Corporation

Saket- SMSIL (JV)

SERCIPL- SMBL {JV]

SRRECIPL- SMSL [JV]-Mahbubnagar

SMSL-MBPL JV Durg package-A

SMSIL KTCO |IV)

Bhartiva SMSIL (V)

SMS Infrastructure Lod. Shreenath Enterprises J.V,
AGIPL-SMSIL (1V)

G5J Enva Lid, In consortium with SMS Infrastructure Lid
8MS Infrastructure Ltd - Aarti Infra-Projects Pve. Litd. J.V.
SMSIL-MBPL-BRAPL {JV)

GDCL-SMSIL 1V )

SMSL-SRRCIPL (JV)

SMSIL-MBPL [JV)

Meghe 5MS Health Beiences Consortium [Spy)
SRRCIPL-SMSL-BEKEM [JV)

Individuals having Significant Influence & their
Enterprieses

Apay Sancheti

Anand Sanchet

Paramveer Sanchet

Aleshay Sanchet

San Finance Corporation | Partnership Firm)




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

35) Employee Benefit

A,

i in Lacs
Nature of Transactions Year ended on Related Parties
Referred in (a] | Referred in [b) Group Entities
Purchase of Servace/ Material for 31-Mar-24 z - G058 14
Plant Property & BEquipmernt 31-Mar-23 - 5.549.02
31-Mar-24 1,633.80 289342
1 Received / d he yes
oL RetIvE. J, Sutg The yuit 31-Mar-23 6,630.55 2 10,659.56
a ; 31-Mar-24 2,584 97 - 1,995.80
¥ P ; or . :
Hos Facid g e year 31-Mar-23 6,826.81 . 8,31272
’ 31-Mar-24 119 -
Remuneration patd during the year 31 M35 - - =
Deposit & Advance Received gi::i‘fi; = : :
31-Mar-24 - -
(5] & Advanc
eposit VAMEE EIVED - Mar 23 - 7 017.55
¥ : - 31-Mar-24 247 - 15.27
Tax paid [Other Transaction Reod 31-Mar-23 £ 5
Tex pad /Other Transacuon | Pad 31-Mar-24 4.18 E5.a7
) 31-Mar-23 -
Outstanding Balances included in 31-Mar-24 - .
assets 31-Mar-23 307.29
Outstanding Balances inclued in d1-Mar-24 2,190.80 5.513.83
hahilites 31-Mar-23 3,143.08 4, 246,85
Gratuity obligations
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet Pin Lacs
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Present Value of Benefit Obhpation as at the end of the yvear {3.18) -
Fair value of plan assets
Net Oblipation {3.18)
Net [Liability]/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet [3.18]) -
Movemenis in Plan Asseits and Plan Liabilities
There are tio Plan Assets and Liabilties sinee the obligation is not funded,
Amount recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit Expenses
1 in Lacs
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Service Cost 0.45
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 0.19 -
{Expected Contributions by the Employess) -
[Cains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements
Net Effect of Changes in Foreygn Exchange Rates -
Net impact on the Profit / [Loss] before tax 0.64 -
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as Other Comprehensive Income
_ "in Lacs
[Particiiars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Actuanial (Gains) /Losses on Obligation For the Period {0,08)
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI [0.08)




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

E. Change in Present Value of Obligations

¥ in Lacs

Change In Present Value of Obligations 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening of defined benefit obligations - -
Liability Transfer [n/(Out) 2.62 -
Service cost 0.45 -
lnterest Cost 0.19 <
Benefit Paid - -
Actuarial (Gaim)/Loss on total liabilites: {0.08] -
- gue to chonge in financiol assumptions NA

- due to change irl demogrophic assumphons NA

- due to experiences varance MA -
Clmlnj of defined benefit obligation J.18 -

F. Assumptions
The assumptions under ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date. The significant
artuarial assumptions were as follows:

?in Laes

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Expected Eeturn on Plan Assets NA NA

Rate of Discounting T.13% NA

Rare of Salary Increase B NA
Withdrawal rate 14.73 MA
Martality Rate 100 % of 1ALM NA

(2012-14)
Averape futire senvice (in Years) 2525 NA
G. Sensitivity Analysis
Following table shows the sensitivity results on Lability due to change in the assumptions
% in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Projected Henefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 3.18 WA
Increase Discount Rate by 0.50% [0.08) NA
Decrease Discount Bare by 0.50% .09 WA
Increase Salary Inflation by 1.00% 018 NA
Decrease Salary Inflation by 1.00% [0.16) WA
Inerease Withdrawal Rate by 5.00% {0.0%9 NA
Deorease Withdrawal Rate by 5.00% .11 MNA

Note +-

i) The base hability is calculated at discount rate of 7.13 % per annum and salary inflation rate of 8.00 % per
annum for all future years,

2] Liabilities are very sensitive to salary escalation rate, discount rate & withdrawal rate

3] Liabilities are very less sensitive due to change in mortality assumptions. Hence, sensitivities due to change
in mortality are ignored.

H. The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2024 as follows:

Projected Benefit Obligation Payable in future Years from the date of| 31-Mar-24 31-.'!!:.::3““
15t Following Year 0,39 NA
2nd Following Year 0,39 NA
drd Following Year 0.36 NA
4th Following Year 0.37 NA
5th Following Year 0.34 NA
After 5th Year 3.22 HA




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

36) Financial risk managemeont objective and policies :-
The Company’s principal financal labilities compnse lpans and borrowings, made and other payables and financigl

guarantee contracts The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
provide gpuarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other
receivables, current investment and cash and cash equivalents that deove directly from its operations. The Company
is exposed lo market risk, credit sk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company's senior management ensdres that nancidl risk achivities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial nsks are identified, messured and managed in accordance with the
Compuny's policies and risk gbjectives. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below:

I} Markst risk :-

i)

it

Market risk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will Quctuare because of
changes in market prices. Market nsk comprises three types of nsk: interest rate nisk, currency nisk and other
price risk, such as equity price nsk and commodity nsk Pinancial instruments affected by market risk include

Ioans and borrowings, deposits etc.

Interest Rate Risk:-

Interest rate risk i the nsk that the future cash flows with respect o interest pavments of borrowings will
flictuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure o the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primaniy to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, however
the company does not have any long-term debt obligation with floating interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk:-
The company does not have any foreign currency risk exposure

Other Price Risk:-
the company has not made any imvestment 10 equity secunbes hénce no exposure,

Credit Risk :

Credit nsk is the nsk that the counter party will nor meet ats obligatons under a financial msoument or a
eustamer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit dsk from its operating activitics
fprimarily trade receivables| The comapny measure the expected credit Ioss of trade receivable based on
historical, trend, indusirial practices and business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are
based on actual eredit loss experienc and past trends based on on historical data, loss on cellection of receivables
is not materizl hence no provision considersd

The Company's exposure to Credit Risk for Trade Recefvables

¥ inLacs
Particulass Gross carrying amount
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

1-90 davs past due B8.50 47.22
91 to 180 days past due 18.56 0.85
More than 180 days past due L.70 2.98
Toal 108.77 51.03
Liquidity Risk :

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a lijmudity planning tol. The Company's objective is
to maintain & balance between continuity of funding and flexibility thratigh the use of cash credit facility and
bﬂ.n,li!.' loans, Liguidity nisk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its uhljg;tinns
on tme or at a reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for Lguidity,
funding as well as settlement managemenst. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are ur.reruee_-'u
by senior management,




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

¥ in Lacs
As at 31st March, 2024 0-1 Years 1-5 Years Beyond 5 Years Total
|Long term borrowings 2,998 43 450,80 3.449.23
Short term borrowings 7.633.89 7,833.89
Total 7,833.89 2,008.43 450.80 11,283.12
|As at 31st March, 2023 0-1 Years 1-8 Years Beyond 5 Years Total |
|Long term borrowings 5 3,879.54 . 3,879.54 |
Short term burmwmgs 7,505.60 . - 7.505.60
Total T,505.60 3,879.54 - 11,385.14
Maturity patterns of other Financial Liabllities
¥ inmLacs
As at 31st March, 2024 6 months or 6-12 months Beyond 12 Toetal
less months
Trade payahble 95 .06 0.05 T.78 102.89
Creditors for Capital p_;nurla =
Other Finanmal Liability (Current Non 402:39 402.39
Total 497.45 0.05 7.78 505.28
As at 31st March, 2023 6 months or 6-12 months Beyond 12 Total
less months
Trade payable 1.32 7.6 1.48 10.43
Creditors for Capital goods - .
Other Finanecal 1..1.'!:hﬂ'l[:-’ [Current Non T.21 - 7.21
Total 8.53 7.62 1.48 17.63
37) Earnings Per Share:
As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
¥ in Locs FinLacs
Net Profit available for Equity Shareholders as per statement of profit and loss
before other comprehensive income 2,105.50 [46.94)
Ket profit/(loss) for ealeculation of Basic EPS & Diluted EPS 2,105.50 [46.94)
Weighted average number of Equity Sheres in calculatng Basic EPS & 1,00,00,000 14.13.014
Diluted EPS
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/- each
Basic & [Duluted 21.05 3.32)

38) Capital Management
The capital structure of the company consists of net debt and total equity of the conipany, The company manages its
capital o ensure that the company will be able ta continue as going concern while maximising the return to
shakebolders through mix of debt and equity within the overall capital structure,

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants.

¥ in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Borrowings 11,283.12 11,385.14
Trade pavable 102 849 10.43
Other Financial Laabilty 402,39 7.21
Tatal Deht 11,788.40 11,202.77T
Less ; Cash & Cash Equivalent {0.37) 1193.17)
:ut ::.':ht 11,7TBB.77 11,595.95
Uity ’

3,002.84 BO7T.28
::tll::llpil:.l 3,002.84 B97.18
-apital an net debt 14,701.61 12,493.23
Uiearing Ratio T9.T0% 92.82%




PONDA ENVOCARE LIMITED
Notes To Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

39) Fair value measurement

The fair values of the financial assers and lighilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current iransaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.
The lollowing methods and assumptions were used to cstimate the fair values:
) Fair value of current assets which incudes loans given, cash and cash equivalents. other bank balances and other
financial assets appraximate their carrying amounts largely due ta short term maturities of these instruments.

2] Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters
stich as interest rates and individual eredit worthiness of the counterpartyv. Based on this evaluation, allowances
are taken o account for expected losses of these receivables, Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not
matertally different from their carrying amounts.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fimancial imstruments by
valuaton technigue:

Level 1:
Cuoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for wentical assers or labilities,

Level 3:
Other techriigueés for which major inputs which have & significant effect on the recorded foir value are observable,
esther directly or indirectly,

Lowed 3:

Techniques whirh use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
ohservable market data [Unobservable input data).

¥ inLacs
Fair Value
Financial Assets & Non through Falr Value Carried at Total
mﬁ;‘mi: at 31st Curiont | Current Total m‘ﬁl gt m;;t:ud i
Loss
Finacial Assests
Trade Receivable 108,77 LOBa.TT = = 108,77 10B.77
Cash & cash Equivalents 0.37 0.37 - - 0.37 0.37
Cither Financial Assets 303,77 30277 - - 302,77 A02.77
Tecal - 411.91 411.91 - . 411.91 411.91
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,449,323 7.833.89 11,283,102 - - 11,283.12 11,283.12
Lease Liabilines g0 1.41 91.36 91.35 91.36
Trade payables - ] 102.85 - : 102.89 102.8%
Other Financial Liabilities 3.34 3949.05 40239 . - 402,39 402 39
Total 3,542.52 8,337.24 11.879.76 - - 11,879.76 11,879.76
F in Lacs
Fair Value
Finaneial Assets & Non i Fair Value Carried at Total
;*::ﬂfi;’u; suaLa Cumrent | Omrront Tatal pranth through OCI "‘“;::‘t“* Amount
Loss
Finacial Assests 2
Trade Receivahle - 51.03 51.03 . - 51.03 £1.03
Cash & cash Equivalents 193.17 193,17 2 = 163,17 193.17
Other Financial Assels : 284.50 284.50 = ‘ 284,50 284,50
Total - 528.TD 528.70 - - 528.70 528.70
Financial Linkilities
B"—"m“"nﬁﬂ 3,879.54 750560 11,385 14 ‘ . 11,385,149 11.385:14
Trade payables - 10.43 10,43 : o 10,43 10,43
Dther Finacial Liahilities 6,19 1.01 7.21 - . V.21 7.2l
Total 3,B85.73 T.517.04 1140277 - - 11,402.77 11,802.77
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40) The Followings are analytical ratic for the year
5L Particular Numerator Denominator | Current | Previous |% Variance Reason for Variance
No. Period Period
(2] |Current Ratio 1.652.84 o434 74 (.20 0.23 14%
[Current Assets | Current Liabilities)
(b} | Debt-Equity Ratio 11,283,123 2,002,584 J.76 12.69 T
(Total Debt / Total Equity)
icl |Debt Service Coverapge Ralio 365.37 1 26.96 2.88 {0.00) 2BR%Y
[EBITDA & Non Cash Iterns / Total lastallment
(d] |Return on Equity Ratio (%) 2.105.56 3,002.84 .70 (0.05] TH'%
{Net Income / Shareholder Equity)
e} |loventory turnover ratio NA NA NA NA MNA
[Cost of goods sold / Average inventory)
{f] _|Trade Receivables turnover ratio 627,75 79.90 7.86 0% Sinee project was under construction in las:
(Net sales | Average accounts receivable] financial year, hence the ratios will vary abruptly.
#) |Trade payables turnover ratio 45.65 56.066 0.81 (29.99]) -103%
[Met purchase | Aversge accounts payable]
(b} [Met capital turnover ratio G27.75 (10,468.89) (0. 06) - 0%
(Mel Sales [ Working Capital)
(i} |Net profit ratio (%) 2 105.56 H27.75 3.35 335%:
{Profit Afier Tax / Value of Sales & Services)
{il |Return on Capital employed (%] (114.87] 3,002,684 {0.04) (0.01) 3%
[EBIT & Exceptional ltem / (Total Assets - Currenl
Liability)
(k] [Return on investment (%) NA NA NA NA NA

(Met Profit / Total Investment)

-
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41) Ind As 116 Leases

The Company lease asset primanly consist of leases for land, The Key disclosure requirement for lease disclosmg

amounts relating to the reporting petiod for the following items :

8l |Particular 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
i] |Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 178 -
il] |Interest expense on lease habilifies . 3
i) | Total cash outflow for leases =7 .0 =
w) [Additons of nght-ol-use asseis < -
vl o461 -
Carrving value of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period
Maturity patterns of lease liahility
T im Lacs
As at 31st March, 2024 0-1 Years 1-5 Years Beyond 5 Years Total
Long term lease - 3.07 86,88 £9.94
Short term lease 141 - - 1.41
Total 141 3.07 86.88 01.36
As at 31st March, 2023 (-1 Years 1-5 Years Beyond 5§ Years Total
Long term lease - - - -
Short term lease - - -
Total B - =

42) A reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate

to the profit before income taxes is summarized below:;

Tax Expense.

Profit Before Tax

Orther comprehensive income before tax

Total comprehensive income before tax

Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate

Expected Income Tax Expenses

Tax Effect of adjustments to reconcile expected

Tax Effect of Non Deductible expenses

Deduction u /s 35AD

Tux ot unabosrbed Loss

Total income tax expense recognised in Profit & Loss
a) Tax on normal mcome recognised in profic and loss
b} Taxon other comprehensive income recognised in profit and loss
Total tax recognised In profit and loss

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
¥ |n Lacs ¥ In Lacs
(497 .42) (29.02)
0.08 -
(497 .24) (59.02
26,000 26,000
(129.31) {15.35)
- (43.08)
Ta.72 Q.29
[2,548.28) .
[%.08) 49.13
'ﬂlﬁm -.941 =
(260292 -
10.02) -

[2,602.94)

43) Party balances are sulyect to confirmation and the balances shown under trade recetvable, trade pavable, loans and
advances, other current assets & liabilites have approximately the same realiasable value as shown in the financials.,

44) Company is not required to spent on CSR Expenditure as the company is not fullfilling any of the following criteria

stipulated in provision of section 135 of the company Act 2013
a} Net worth Rz, Five hundred crores or more,
b Turmover of Bs. One thousand crores or more,
) Net profit of Hs. Five crores or more,
during the any preceeding three finanacial year.
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43 Previous year s figures have been regrouped frecasted, wherever necessary

46) Figures in bracket shows previous vear figure
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